Board of Selectmen Budget Review Meeting October 31, 2011 Fire Station Community Room

Call to order by Chair Jarvis at 9:08AM.

The Board of Selectmen reviewed two sets of budget review minutes, October and made several changes.

Motion to approve the minutes of the Board of Selectmen meeting of October 17th as amended made by Chair Jarvis, seconded by Selectman Kratovil. 3-0

Motion to approve the minutes of the Monday, October 24th Board of Selectmen meeting as amended made by Chair Jarvis, seconded by Selectman Bickford. 3-0

Town Historian- 4583:

Cathy Orlowicz, Town Historian

Patriotic Expenses line has been increased slightly. This line funds the small American flags that go on the grave sites. Cathy buys the flags in bulk and only needs to purchase them every other year. She did not buy them this year, so she will buy them next.

The Historian Supply line is for ink and paper supply that is used when a citizen or the Town requests research or documents from the Historian.

New Durham/NH Collection- this is the collection that is housed in the Library. This line also replaces the bulb for the microfilm budget. The archives and historian line is for items in the vault. The Historian keeps copies of articles and newspaper clippings as town records. File folders and archive boxes will be purchased out of this year's budget.

Motion to approve account # 4583, Town Historian, in the amount of \$710 made by Chair Jarvis, seconded by Selectman Bickford. 3-0

Under the executive line (4130), the Boodey House Committee is requesting \$200 for advertising (551). The Boodey House committee hopes to put together an RFP for foundation work on the building and will be submitted to the papers, which will cost some money. The postage request (626) is for \$100 to send out requests for donations. This budget will be discussed at length on November 14th.

Solid Waste and Transfer Station- 4324:

Joe Bloskey, Transfer Station Foreman and Cathy Orlowicz, Office Manager

Joe and Cathy projected figures for Demo and Debris removal (420) and Solid Waste disposal (421). Chair Jarvis suggested watching this line for a couple of weeks, as of October 13th, there was approximately 50% left in that line. Selectman Bickford, suggested that the figures for 421 coming in are on target and doesn't look that far off. They are trying not to cut their budget for hauling too tight, as if there is an upswing in C&D, they would like to have the funds available to haul.

All wage lines were increased to reflect the 2% increase. The clerical line has been increased to ten hours over the 8 hours, and also includes a merit increase.

The Solid Waste facility adds a seasonal part-time position in the summer time. The Overtime line has been decreased by \$500 to more closely reflect this year's over time.

The cost to monitor the closed landfill and testing has increased to \$7,500. We have requested to DES to reduce the number of tests needed, but will not have the answer by Town Meeting. If they agree to reduce the level of monitoring, we will see a significant financial reduction in what we will have to pay out of this line. Mowing and fertilizing for this project is done by contractors for about \$300; this is a requirement and needs to be maintained for monitoring purposes.

There is a significant decrease in hauling recycling (425), down to \$6,650 from \$12,000. This savings is due in part to the switch to Best Way and the amount of recycling done by the citizens. They have been doing a great job recycling, so as to allow for at least one haul per month, which makes the Town eligible for free rentals of the containers. A significant savings is from separating our disposal fees into a new line (see below).

Equipment maintenance has also been reduced by almost \$6,000 due to changes in hauling company, as they are a bit gentler with the equipment and will make repairs to anything they damage.

Equipment Rental was increased slightly from \$4,200 to \$4,700. They have anticipated paying \$50 per month for rental of the roll-offs. There is a rental fee of \$600 per year for tire rental container.

The training and safety line has been increased to incorporate steel toed boots for employees, and any training courses or safety gear.

The vehicle fuel line has been increased to reflect current markets as well as to reflect the use of the loader. This line will change when fuel rates are locked in, or a rate is set for the town.

A new line has been added to separate out what it costs to dispose of the recycling items. This will be kept separate from line 425, which tracts hauling recycling.

Capital Funding Request: to establish a revolving fund for the profit or surplus of the recycling program, which means that the money will be put into the revolving fund after all expenses for recycling have been paid.

Funding for the Capital Reserve funds for the transfer station came from the recommendations of Capital Improvement Committee. Joe and Cathy are going to revisit the CIP for equipment, and come back to the Board. Joe will get prices for the covering of the bins, to justify the money being put away each year. They will come back before the Board on November 21st.

A five minute recess was taken.

Highway and Streets- 4312: (11:10AM)

Mike Clarke, Road Agent and Cathy Orlowicz, Office Manager

There a request for an increase in the full-time and clerical lines of 2% for all employees, as well as a request for merit raises for three full-time personnel and one part-timer.

The increase in the part-time line is for 2%. That line is already in the red for 2011.

Increase in the telephone line, as there was an increase on the Road Agent and Foreman cell phones.

There is an increase of \$17,200 in the rental of equipment line (440) for gravel crushing. By 2015, we will have to have the gravel pit reclaimed, and we have to be done with that pit.

Brush cutter line (442) is decreased by \$500, as the machine will not need to be used for quite as long next year. Some roads will be cut every other year, the majority of the narrow dirt roads are the ones that they concentrate on first. However, brush removal in the winter has been so good that they are seeing a reduction in need.

The Safety and Training line has been increased by \$500, as trainings have been further away in recent years. The department has several hard hats that have to be replaced, and all safety equipment comes out of this line.

The uniform line is being level funded, but the Highway department is in the process of researching a new contractor for this service.

Office Supplies has been increased by \$700 to increase efficiency in the office at the Highway Department, as it is a small space.

Radio maintenance has been increased due to the upcoming purchase of pagers, and replacement of a repeater for a 100 watt repeater.

Gas and Diesel have been averaged from last year, which is an increase over last year. Governor Wentworth last year gave us an estimate of 1500 gallons, but are on track to use 3600 gallons- due to a fourth bus and better accuracy in tracking gallons. The Road Agent would like to see some type of surcharge enacted to account for the additives and the maintenance costs.

Salt will cost the same next year at \$61.83 per tons. Sand is a three year contract at \$7.95 per cubic yard. The cubic yards bought are at the Road Agent's discretion, he is able to purchase as much or as little as he needs. Calcium Chloride will be the same next year, and there is only one vendor. Cold Patch will be the same next year as well.

The Cold Patch line (668) has decreased by \$300. The Tar line (679) has been increased for spot shim and crack sealing by \$7,113. This is done by only one company out of Massachusetts. The Road Agent will check his figures and get back to the Board.

Culvert line will remain the same this year. The HW department will provide an historical for the Board on how much they have spent on beaver removal. The equipment line will not see an increase next year either.

Mileage has increased for next year due to the increase in the mileage rate as of July 2011, as well as an increase in distance of trainings.

Next year, the Town will have to make significant updates to Downing's Pond dam. The Board and the Road Agent discussed whether it would be more appropriate for the Town to do the work, or to contract it out. Mike brought up the possibility of purchasing an easement from the land owner that abuts the dam.

A brief discussion about the Capital Reserve funds was held.

Next Meeting: Friday morning from 9 am to noon, November 4th, for a work session on the Personnel Policy, and possibly the Dog Ordinance.

The Board of Selectmen discussed the 2011 Tax Rate, which was set by DRA. The Town's portion of the tax rate is \$6.88.

Health Insurance rates were distributed to the Selectmen. Chair Jarvis requested a breakdown of what insurance options we have for next year. Selectman Bickford would like to pool our health insurance with Barnstead to try to get a better rate.

Motion to enter into non-public session pursuant to RSA 91-a: II e made by Chair Jarvis, second by Selectman Kratovil. Jarvis-aye, Kratovil- aye, Bickford- aye.

Public session ended at 2:09PM.

The Board discussed a revised settlement agreement.

Motion to come out of nonpublic made by Chair Jarvis, seconded by Selectman Bickford. Vote 3-0 Out of non-public at 2:25PM

Motion that the Board approve and sign the revised settlement agreement, specifically the change in exhibit C made by Chair Jarvis, seconded by Selectman Bickford. 2-1 with the opposed being Selectman Kratovil.

Selectman Kratovil disagreed with the vote initially because the agreement allows for one trailer to remain on the property.

Motion to adjourn, made by Selectman Bickford, seconded by Chair Jarvis. 3-0

Meeting adjourned at 2:29PM.

Respectfully Submitted, *Alison Webb*